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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF INGENUITY BIOSCIENCES PRIVATE LIMITED

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Ingenuity Biosciences Private Limited for the
year ended March 31, 2025.

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Ingenuity Biosciences Private Limited, which
comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss, including the statement
of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the statement of Changes in Equity for the
year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the financial statements).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the
Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, its loss including
other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10)
of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for Audit of the Financial statements for year ended March 31, 2025. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India {ICAl) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
Financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.




Management’s Responsibility for the Financlal statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity
of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Those charged with governance are also responsible
for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole is
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this Financial
statements.,




As pa'rt. of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify an_d assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial statements, whether due to fraud
or err'or, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
su.fﬁment and appropriate to provide basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a ‘material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Company’s internal control.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the Board of Directors.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of the management use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Company to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the Statement or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the Financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

« We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal

control that we identify during our audit.

» We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements:

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure 1” a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.




b) In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
appears from our examination of those books. These records are also kept in electronic mode on servers

physically located in india and the company Is also having daily back up of book of accounts maintained in
electronic mode.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive
Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of -Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended,
specified under section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on 31 March, 2025, taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March, 2025, from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f)  With reference to the adequacy of the Internal Financial Controls with reference to these financial
statements and operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in Annexure-2.

g) The Company has not paid any managerial remuneration during the year, hence reporting for
provisions Section 197 read with schedule V of the Companies Act 2013 is not required for the year ended
March 31, 2025. .

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

a. The company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

b. The company did not have any on long term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

¢. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

d. l)The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or
kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

IThe management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been
received by the Company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with
the understanding, whether recorded In writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or
indirectly, lend or Invest In other persons or
of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficlarl
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the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

) Based on such audit procedures that were considered reasonable and appropriate in the

circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under
sub-clause (1) and (11) contain any material misstatement.

o. No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

f. The reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is applicable from 1,
April 2023. Based on our examination which included test check, the company has used an accounting
software for maintaining its books of accounts which has the feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility
and the same was operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software.
Further, during the course of audit, we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being

tempered with. Additionally, the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory
requirements for record retention.

For, Ketul R Shah & Associates
Chartered Accountants

[ Proprietor ]
M. No. : 131631
Place :'Ahmedabad FRN : 160764W

Date :26/06/2025 UDIN : 25131631BMIXWX3304



f:qner;)ei;ttjrs 1Oto the Independent Auditor’s Report (referred to in paragraph 1 of the
date) of | n the_er Le.gal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of even
_ Ngenuity Biosciences Private Limited for the year ended March 31, 2025

1.

In respfact of Property, Plant and Equipment:
a. (A)The Company has no Property, Plant and Equipment, hence maintenance of records

of Property, Plant and Equipment is not applicable.
(B) The Company has no intangibles assets hence maintenance of records is not applicable.

b.-As there is no Property, Plant and Equipment hence physical verification is not
applicable.

€. The company has no immovable properties hence the title deeds of the same are held in
the name of the Company is not applicable.

d. The Company has no Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of use assets) or
intangible assets during the year ended March 31, 2025. Accordingly, the requirement to

report on clause 3(i){d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules
made thereunder. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(i)(e) of the Order is not

~applicable to the Company.

. a. The company has no inventory, hence physical verification of inventory is not applicable.

b. The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rupees five crores
in aggregate from banks during the year on the basis of security of current assets of the
Company. Hence the clause of the order regarding the quarterly returns/statements is not

applicable.

During the year the Company has not made any investments in, provided any guarantee or
security or granted any loan or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Hence, requirement
to report on clause 3(a) to (f) of the order is not applicable to the company.

The company has not advanced loans to directors, hence the non-compliance with section 185

of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable.
The company has not given loan to any company, hence the non-compliance to the provisions

of section 186 of the Companies Act 2013 are not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, as the
Company has neither accepted deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts which are




7.

8.

10.

rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order Is not

applicable.

We are informed that maintenance of cost records has not been prescribed by the Central
Government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of
activities of the company and therefore clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

In respect of statutory dues:

a. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including
Provident Fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax, goods &service tax, custom
duty, excise duty, cess and other statutory dues, if any, with appropriate authorities.
There are no arrears of outstanding statutory dues as at 31st March, 2025 for a period
of more than six months from the date they became payable.

b. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are
no dues of income tax or Goods & Service Tax or sales tax or service tax or duty of
customs or duty of excise or value added tax, pending to be deposited on account of
any dispute, therefore the provisions of clause 3(vii)(b) of the order is not applicable.

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the
books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the
year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or in the payment of interest thereon
to any lender.

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

(c) The Company has no Term Loans in its Books, hence the term loans were applied for the
purpose for which the loans were obtained clause of the order are not applicable.

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no funds raised on
short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e} The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(f) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on Clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer / further
public offer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(a) of
the Order Is not applicable to the Company.
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(co)nIthiE:;mzzzznllas not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or

compliance g, thures (ff.l'lly, partially or optionally convertible) duri.ng the year; hence

applicable. The f e Pfovmons of sections 42 and 62 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not

e Ord.e . unds r;.nsed, have been used for the purposes for which the funds were raised
F 15 not applicable to the Company.

11. (a) No materia] fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or
reported during the year.

(b} During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
has been filed by us in Form ADT - 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received
by the Company during the year.

12.1In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company
is not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, clause 3{xii)(a), (b) and (c) of the order is not
applicable.

13. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with
Sections 177 and 188 of the Act, wherever applicable, and details of such transactions have
been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

14. {(a) The provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 relates to the applicability of
internal audit, are not applicable to the Company, hence requirement to report on clause
3(xiv){a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company does not have an internal audit system and is not required to have an internal
audit system under the provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, the
requirement to report under clause 3(xiv){b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

15. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the company, the company has not entered into non-cash transactions
with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly clause 3(xv) of the order is not

applicable.

16. {a) The provisions of section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not
applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi){a) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(b} The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities
without obtained a valid Certificate of Registration {CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per
the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,




(c) The Company Is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3{xvi) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(d) There Is no Core Investment Company as a part of the Group; hence, the requirement to
report on clause 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

17.The company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year. In the immediately
preceding financial year, the Company had incurred cash losses of Rs. 34.02 million.

18.There is no resignation of statutory auditors during the year; hence this clause is not
applicable. .

19. On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 30 to the financial statements, ageing and
expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors
and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the
future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to
the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged
by the Company as and when they fall due.

20.As represented by the management to us, section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) is
not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xx)(a) and (b)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

For, Ketul R Shah & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Ketul R Shah

[ Proprietor ]

M. No. : 131631
Place : Ahmedabad ' FRN :160764W
Date :26/06/2025 UDIN : 25131631BMIXWX3304




ANNEXURE "2° TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

1'“;':-'!:rr£’¢ to in paragraph 2{f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our repart
ot even date) for Ingenuity Biosciences Private Limited for the year ended March 31, 2025

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 {“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Ingenuity Biosciences Private
Umited as of 31% March, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the Financial Statements of the Company for the
peniod Ended 31% March, 2025.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Cempany’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controfs over Financial
Reponrting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the

Compantes Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
internal Financia! Controls Over Financial Reporting {the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013,
to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such

controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our sudit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Qur audit of internal financial controls
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgement, including the assessrnent of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whather

due 1o (raud or error,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provi 33515 for eur audit
ppinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting, 7 A A% \
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statemer?ts for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control oviar
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of
the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized

acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility
of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may

become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,

the Company has, in
all material respects, an adequate internal fi

nancial controls system over financial reporting and such internal
financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31% March, 2025, based on the criteria
for internal financial control over financial reporting established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Inter

nal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For, Ketul R Shah & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Ketul R Shah

[ Proprietor ]
M. No. : 131631
Place :' Ahmedabad FRN : 160764W
Date :26/06/2025

UDIN : 251 31631BMIXWX3304



Ingenuity Biosciences Private Limited
Balance sheet as at March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupecs million, unless otherwisc stated)

As at Asat
Particulars Notes March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
1. ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 3.1 - -
(b) Capital work in progress 33 - -
(c) Other intangible assets 3.2 - -
(d) Income tax asscts 5 0.03 1.93
Total non-currcent asscts 0.03 1.93
Current asscts
(a) Financial assets
(1) Trade receivables 4.1 0.02 0.26
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 4.2 0.94 0.26
(iii) Other financial assets 4.3 - 0.07
(b) Other current assets 6 0.01 0.31
Total current assets 0.97 0.89
Total assets 1.00 2.82
Il. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 7 7.00 7.00
(b) Other equity 8 (6.03) (5.9
Total Equity 0.97 1.04
Liabilities
Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Trade payables
() total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - -
(b) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 9.1
. 0.03 0.02
and small enterprises
(b) Other current liabilities 10 * -
(c) Income tax liabilities 11 - 1.76
Total current liabilities 0.03 1.78
Total liabilities 0.03 1.78
Total equity and liabilities 1.00 2.82
* Figure nullified in conversion of Rupees in million.
Summary of material accounting policy 2.1
Summary of significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions 22

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements,

As per our attached report of even date
For Ketul R Shah and Associates

Chartered Accountants
ICA1 FRN: 160764\

Ketul R. S
Proprictor
Membership No. 131631

Date: June 26, 2025
Place: Ahmedabad, India
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For Ingenuity Biosciences Private Limited

CIN : U74999GJ2021PTC120292

P2

Mahesh Bfmlgat
Dircetor
DIN :07253670

Date: June 26, 2025
Place: Ahmedabad, India

VOIWN 2513163 BMIRWX3304
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Nirmal Bhatia
Director
DIN : 09068966

Date: June 26, 2025
Place: Ahmedabad, India



Ingenuity Biesciences Private Limited
Statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

Sr. No. Particulars Notes Year ended March 31,2025 | Year ended March 31, 2024
(I)  [Revenue from operations 13 - 18.71
(If)  |Other income 14 0.03 26.68

(1) |Total income (I+ II) 0.03 45.39
(IV) |Expenses
Cost of material consumed 15 - 13.07
Employee benefit expcnses 16 * 777
Finance costs 17 0.01 0.04
Depreciation and amortization expenses 3 - 1.08
Clinical and analytical research expensecs 18 - 0.15
Other expenses 19 0.11 31.06
Total expenses (IV) 0.13 53.17
(V) |Profit/(Loss) before tax (I111-1V) (0.10) (7.78)
(V1) |Tax Expense 12
(1) Current tax - 1.75
(2) Adjustment of tax relating to earlicr years - 0.41)
(3) Deferred tax charge / (credit) - 1.11
Total tax expense (V1) - 245
(VII) |Profit/(Loss) for the year (V-VI) (0.10) (10.23)
(VIII) |Other comprehensive income (OCI)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods
Re-measurement Gain/(losses) on defined benefit plans - -
Income tax effect on above - -
Total other comprehensive Income for the year (net of tax) (VIII) - -
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year (IX) = (VII+ VIII) (0.10) (10.23)
Eamings per equity share (Face value per share: Rs. 10 each (March 31, 2024: Rs. 20
10 each ))
Basic and Diluted (0.14) (14.61)
* Figure nullified in conversion of Rupees in million.
Summary of material accounting policy 2.1
22

Summary of significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial staiements.

As per our attached report of even date
For Ketul R Shah and Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAT FRN: 160764W

Ketul R. Sh
Proprietor
Membership No. 131631

Date: June 26, 2025
Place: Ahmedabad, India

i’or and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For Ingenuity Biosciences Private Limited
CIN : U74999GJ2021PTC120292

Ma@

Director

DIN :07253670

Date: June 26, 2025
Place: Ahmedabad, India
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Director
DIN : 09068966

Date: June 26, 2025
Place: Ahmedabad, India



Ingenuity Biosciences Private Limited
Statement of Cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended

AHMEABAD
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Particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
A Cash flow from opcrating activities
Profit/(Loss) before tax (0.10) (7.78)
Adjustments to reconcile loss before tax to net cash flows:
Loan written back (including interest accrued) - (17.78)
Liabilities no longer required written back - (8.74)
Depreciation and amortisation expense - 1.08
Loss on sale of business - 14.29
Finance cost 0.01 1.48
Changes due to prior period adjustments 0.03 -
Operating Loss before working capital changes (0.06) (17.43)
Adjustments for:
(Increase)/Decrease in other current asset 0.29 (1.94)
Decrease in inventories - 7.01
Decrease in trade receivables 0.23 29.35
Decrease in other financial assets 0.07 0.80
Increase/(Decrease) in trade payables 0.01 (23.68)
(Decrease) in other financial liabilities - (7.53)
Increase/(Decrease) in other current liabilities * (8.81)
Increase in provisions - 0.33
Cash (used in)/generated from operations 0.55 (21.90)
(Net direct taxes paid) / net refund received 0.14 (3.58)
Net cash flow used in operating activities (A) 0.69 (25.48)
B Cash flows from investing activities
proceeds from sale / (Purchase) of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets - 0.80
Net cash flow used in investing activities (B) - 0.80
C Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from Long-term borrowings - 17.38
Proceeds from sale of business - 7.00
Finance cost paid (0.01) (1.48)
Net cash flow from financing activitics (C) (0.01) 22.90
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (A + B+ C) 0.68 (1.79)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 0.26 2.05
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 0.94 0.26
Components of cash and cash equivalent
Balance with banks:
- On current accounts 093 0.25
Cash on hand 0.01 0.01
Total cash and cash equivalent at the end of the year (refer note 4.2) 0.94 0‘2?\




2) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities:

3)

Note to Statement of Cash Flows:
1) The Statement of Cash Flo'ws has been prepared under the Indirect method as set out in Ind AS 7 on Statement of Cash Flows notified under Section 133 of the Companies
Act, 2013, read together with Paragraph 7 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules 2015 (as amended).

Particulars As "'222";" o1, Cash flows (net) Others As at March 31, 2024
Financing activities
Long-term borrowings - 17.38 (17.38) -
Total - 17.38 (17.38 -
Non-cash finnncing activities

; Year cnded March
Particul
articuiars 31’ 2024

Loan written back 17.38 1
Total 17.38

There are no non cash investing activities during the year ended 31.03.2024 and 31,03.2025, and no non cash financing activities during the year.

Summary of material accounting policy

Summary of significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Ingenuity Bioscicnces Private Limited

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31, March 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

A. Equity share eapital

Equity shares of Rs, 10 cach issucd, subscribed and fully paid

Particulars

Note Amount

Issued, Subscribed and fully paid equity shares of Rs.10 each

Balance as at March 31, 2023 7.00
Issue of equity shares during the year -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 7 7.00
Issue of equity shares during the year -
Balance as at March 31, 2025 7.00
B. Other cquity

Particulars Reserves & Surplus Total

Retained Earnings

Balance as at March 31, 2023 4,27 4.28
Profit for the year (net of taxes) (10.23) (10.23)
Other comprehensive income for the year (net of taxes) - -
Total Comprehensive loss for the year (10.23) (10.23)
Balance as at March 31, 2024 (5.96) (5.95)
Changes due to prior period errors 0.02 0.01
Profit / (Loss) for the year (net of taxes) (0.10) (0.10)
Other comprehensive income for the year (net of taxes) - -
Total Comprehensive loss for the year (0.07) (0.08
Balance as at March 31, 2025 (6.03) (6.03)
* Figure nullified in conversion of Rupees in million.

Summary of material accounting policy 2.1

Summary of significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions 22

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Ingenuity Biosciences Private Limited
Notes to Financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

1. Corporate information

Ingenuity Biosciences Private Limited (“the Company”) is a private Limited Company domiciled in India with its
registered office at 4C05, 4th Floor, Satyamev Corporate, Nr. Shalin Bungalows, Corporate Road, Prahladnagar,
Jodhpur Char Rasta, Ahmedabad, Guijarat, India. The Company was incorporated on 16 February, 2021 and is
carrying on the business of Clinical Research for various Pharmaceuticals Companies. The Company aims to offer
end-to-end and modular technical services, encompassing both pre-clinical and clinical domains. The Company’s
scientific team is comprised of talented scientists with in-depth and extensive knowledge of bioassay method
development and sample analysis, clinical trial management, and global regulatory requirements. Business
development and technical teams are enthusiastic and excited to collaborate and serve Indian and International

clients across PAN-Asia and European markets.
The financial statements were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on June 26, 2025.
2.1 Material accounting policy information

(A) Basis of preparation and transition to Ind AS

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and
presentation requirements of Division II of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule

I11), as applicable to the Company.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (Rs.) and all values are rounded to the nearest Rs. millions,
except when otherwise indicated. Figures below Rs. 5,000 has been indicated as “*” as the same is nullified on

conversion of rupees in million.
(B) Summary of material accounting policy information
a. Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An
asset is treated as current when it is:

(i)Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;
(ii) Held primarily for the purpose of trading;
(iii) Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or

(iv) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is treated as current when:

(i) It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

(ii) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

(iit) It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

(iv) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period.

The Company classi

Deferred tax asse, classified as non-current assets and liabil & S\l
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Ingenuity Biosciences Private Limited
Notes to Financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and
cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

b. Foreign currencies
The Company’s financial statements are presented in INR which is also its functional currency.
Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at its functional currency spot rates at the
date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. However, for practical reasons, the Company uses average rate if
the average approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates
of exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on
translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on
the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised
in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).

c. Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair value
is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

(i) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
(ii) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value of an asset or a
liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in The financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair valug measurement is

Sances D\
;f/mx
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Ingenuity Biosciences Private Limited
Notes to Financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in The financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting

period.

The management determines the policies and procedures for botli recurring fair value measurement and for non-
recurring measurement.

At each reporting date, the management analyses (lile movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are
required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Company’s accounting policies. For this analysis, the
management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation
computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

The management also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external sources
to determine whether the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis
of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained

above.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant

notes.

(a) Disclosures for valuation methods, significant esﬁmates and .assumptions (note 26)
(b) Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy (note 26)

(c) Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost) (note 26)

d. Revenue from contract with customer

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the services is transferred to the customer at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those services.
The Company has generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements because it typically
controls the services before transferring them to the customer.

The disclosures of significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions relating to revenue from contracts
with customers are provided in Note 2.2.

Sale of service

The Company’s contracts with customers include promises to transfer multiple services to a customer. Revenues
from customer contracts are considered for recognition and measurement when the contract has been approved, in
writing, by the parties to the contract, the parties to contract are committed to perform their respective obligations
under the contract, and the contract is legally enforceable. The Company assesses the services promised in a contract
and identifies distinct performance obligations in the contract. Revenue from customer contracts are recognized
based on these identified distinct performance obligations.

The Company exercise judgement in determining the timing when the performance obligation is satisfied. The
Company considers indicators such as how customer consumes benefits as services are rendered or who controls
the asset as it is being created or existence of enforceable right to payment for performance to date and alternate use
of such product or service, transfer of significant risks and rewards to the customer, acceptance of delivery by the
customer, etc.

For the majority of ct performance obligations, the Company has determined that an “outp t-ntethod is
appropriate meaggaetbf g s. Revenue recognition is determined by assessing the performance'g‘%ﬁﬁeﬂ.\"(‘)r
3 .0 N\
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Ingenuity Biosciences Private Limited
Notes to Financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Contract Balances
Contract assets

A contract asset is initially recognised for revenue earned from clinical services because the receipt of consideration
is conditional on successful completion of the project. Upon completion of the project and acceptance by the
customer, the amount recognised as contract assets is reclassified to trade receivables.

Contract assets are subject to impairment assessment. Refer to accounting policies on impairment of financial assets
in section (m) Financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement.

Trade receivables

A receivable is recognised if an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is
required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of financial assets in section (m)
Financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised if a payment is received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer
before the Company transfers the related services. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company
performs under the contract.

e. Taxes
Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively
enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the Company operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in
other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and considers whether it
is probable that a taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment. The Company shall reflect the effect of
uncertainty for each uncertain tax treatment by using either most likely method or expected value method, depending
on which method predicts better resolution of the treatment.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

i) When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

ii) In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and
interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits
and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available againg ' s :

bd gBlised, except: i
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Ingenuity Biosciences Private Limited
Notes to Financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

i) When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

ii) In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and
interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that
it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset

is realised, or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction
either in OCI or directly in equity.

The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off deferred tax
assets and deferred tax liabilities that relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.

Goods and services tax paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses
Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of Goods and Services tax paid, except:

i) When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in
which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense
item, as applicable

i) When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or
payables in the balance sheet.

f. Property, plant, and equipment

Property, Plant, and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-
term construction projects if the recognition criterias are met. When significant parts of plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives.
Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and
equipment as a replacement if the recognition criterias are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are
recognised in statement of profit and loss as incurred. The present value of the expected cost for the
decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criterias
for a provision are met.

Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any. It comprises of the cost of
property, plant and equipments that are not yet ready for their intended use as on the date of balance sheet.

Depreciation is calculated on a written down value method over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Useful lives (in years) prescribed in Schedule II 7‘
Assets Wdac cule L to
/—T:}}\\ the companies Act 2013
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Ingenuity Biosciences Private Limited
Notes to Financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

\ Computers and peripherals 3
Furniture & fixtures 10

Leasehold improvements are depreciated on straight line basis over the period of lease or useful life, whichever is
lower.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition

of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised

The residual values, useful lives, and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each
financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate

g. Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses

Intangible assets are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the
expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the
amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation

expense on intangible assets is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of
carrying value of another asset.

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising upon derecognition of the asset

(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in
the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

A summary of the policies applied to the Company’s intangible assets is, as follows:

Intangible Internally generated or
assets Useful lives | Amortisation method used acquired
Amortised on a straight-line basis
Computer . .
3 years over the period of computer | Acquired
software
software )
h. Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration

Company as a lessee

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and
equipment a ficg_premises (i.e.,

those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
(\ o not contamapurchase optlon) Lease payments on short-term leases and leas: sof low-




Ingenuity Biosciences Private Limited
Notes to Financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

i. Inventories
Inventories are valued at the net realisable value.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted for as follows:

Consumables: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. Cost is determined on first in, first out basis.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

J- Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered

impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such
transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by
valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared
separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast
calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and
applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered
by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady
or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth
rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries, or country or countries in which
the Company operates, or for the market in which the asset is used.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the statement
of profit and loss, except for properties previously revalued with the revaluation surplus taken to OCI. For such
properties, the impairment is recognised in OCI up to the amount of any previous revaluation surplus

An assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s
or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change
in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised.
The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless the asset is carried
at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase

Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of each CGU (or Company of CGUs)

to which the goodwill relates. When the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than it’s carrying amount, an

20g nised. Impairment losses relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in future periods.
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Ingenuity Biosciences Private Limited
Notes to Financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

k. Provisions

General

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some
or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised
as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is
presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision
due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

1. Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no obligation,
other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes contribution payable to the
provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related service.

The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, which requires contributions to be made to a

separately administered fund. The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the
projected unit credit method.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included
in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a

corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements
are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:

i) The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
it) The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Company

recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of profit and
loss:-

i) Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-
routine settlements; and

i1) Net interest expense or income

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term employee
benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay
as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date. The Company recognizes expected
cost of short-term employee benefit as an expense, when an employee renders the related service.

The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term
employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on the
actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the reporting date. Actuarial gains/losses are
immediatel ¢ statement of profit and loss and are not deferred. The obligations are presented as current

i 'xi&} eet if the entity does not have an unconditional right to defer the settlement.for at least
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Ingenuity Biosciences Private Limited
Notes to Financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

m. Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income (OCl), and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initinl rccognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Company’s business model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables that
do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient,
the Company initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or
for which the Company has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price determined under

Ind AS 115.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCI, it needs to
give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)’ on the principal amount
outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level. Financial assets
with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the
business model.

The Company’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in order
to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual
cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held
within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows while
financial assets classified and measured at fair value through OCI are held within a business model with the
objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation
or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the

Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

i) Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
if) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) with recycling of cumulative

gains and losses (debt instruments)
iii) Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon

derecognition (equity instruments)
iv) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

A ‘“financial asset’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

S

and
i) Contractual
and interest (S

1stagss model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting conlra}ak’é‘ﬁ‘ghw s
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Ingenuity Biosciences Private Limited
Notes to Financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised
in the profit or loss. The Company’s financial assets at amortised cost includes trade receivables, other receivables
and loans.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the balance sheet at fair value with net changes in
fair value recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial assets)
is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when:

i) The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

ii) The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay
the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either
(a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the
asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of
the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be

required to repay.
Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as

appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables,
net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank
overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in two categories:

i) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
ii) Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss . '




Ingenuity Biosciences Private Limited '
Notes to Financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Financial.liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near
teml1. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entercd into by the Company that are not
desTgnéted as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded
derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they arc designated as cffective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading arc recogniscd in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at
the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as
FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/ losses
are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within
equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recogniscd in the statement of profit and loss. The
Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair valuc through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis,

to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
n. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an
original maturity of three months or less, that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and subject to an

insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits,
as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash

management.

o. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity holders of the Company
(after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares

outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
nt Company and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during.the-pei

the peri d\ are
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Ingenuity Biosciences Private Limited
Notes to Financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

New Standards, Interpretations and amendments adopted by the company
The Company has not early adopted any other standard, interpretation or amendment that has been issued but is
not yet effective.

2.2 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requircs management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosurc of contingent liabilitics. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future
periods

Other disclosures relating to the Company’s exposure to risks and uncertainties includes:

i) Capital management note 28
it) Financial risk management objectives and policies note 27
iii) Sensitivity analyses disclosures note 27

Judgements

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters
available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future
developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control
of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to determine the
amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable
profits together with future tax planning strategies.

Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment medical benefits and the present value of
the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various
assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount
rate; future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term
nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are
reviewed at each reporting date.

Fair.value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured
based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the DCF
model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible,
a degree of judgement is requj __\ establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of iﬂp,uts;s_uch as
I hanges in assumptions about these factors could affect %e@; ed:f ir
o
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Ingenuity Biosciences Private Limited
Notes to Financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

New and amended standards
time certain standards and amendments, which are effective for annual periods

The Company applied for the first- '
ly adopted any standard, interpretation or amendment

beginning on or after 1 April 2024. The Company has not ear
that has been issued but is not yet effective.

(i) Ind AS 117 Insurance Contracts

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) notified the Ind AS 117, Insurance Contracts, vide notiﬁc_atign dated
12 August 2024, under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standarqs) Amendment Rules, 2024, which is
effective from annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2024,

Ind AS 117 Insurance Contracts is a comprehensive new accounting standard for insurance contracts covering
recognition and measurement, presentation and disclosure. Ind AS 117 replaces Ind AS 104 Insurance Contracts.
Ind AS 117 applies to all types of insurance contracts, regardless of the type of entities that issue them as well as

to certain cuarantees and financial instruments with discretionary participation features; a few scope exceptions

will apply. Ind AS 117 is based on a general model, supplemented by:
« A specific adaptation for contracts with direct participation features (the variable fee approach)
« A simplified approach (the premium allocation approach) mainly for short-duration contracts

The application of Ind AS 117 does not have material impact on the Company’s separate financial statements
as the Company has not entered any contracts in the nature of insurance contracts covered under Ind AS 117.

(ii) Amendments to Ind AS 116 Leases — Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

The MCA notified the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules, 2024, which
amend Ind AS 116, Leases, with respect to Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback.

The amendment specifies the requirements that a seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liability arising in a sale
and leaseback transaction, to ensure the seller-lessee does not recognise any amount of the gain or loss that relates

to the right of use it retains.

The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2024 and must be applied
retrospectively to sale and leaseback transactions entered into after the date of initial application of Ind AS 116.

The amendments do not have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements.

Standards issued but not yet effective \

The new and amended standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance
of the Company’s financial statements are disclosed below. The Company will adopt this new and amended

standard, when it become effective.
Lack of exchangeability — Amendments to Ind AS 21

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs notified amendments to Ind AS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange
Rates to specify how an entity should assess whether a currency is exchangeable and how it shouldcdetermine a
spot exchange rate when exchangeability is lacking. The amendments also require disclosure of information that
enables users of its financial statements to understand how the currency not being exchangeable into the other
currency affects, or is expected to affect, the entity’s financial performance, financial position and cash flows.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2025. When applying the
amendments, an entity cannot restate comparative information.

The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements.

AHMEABAD

FRN:160764W




- - $T0T ‘1€ YHEW JB SV

(€8°01) (€8°01) (67 230U 19§21) Y 1.¢ Jod SE pauIgjsuely

§S°0 S50 uonippy

8701 8701 €207 ‘10 [1dy 38 5V

: . 150D

ssaanoad
w01 -up-yloa jende) SteinahAed

ssatgdoad-u-yao0m [ende) ¢°¢
8€'S - - LT9 80’1 61'S - LS'01 - LS01 (D+(V) 1e30L
11T - - (4194 9L’ 9¢°¢ - Ly'S - LY'S (9) 18301
112 - - ey 9L'0 9g°¢ - Ly's - LY'S aremyos Jandwo))
§)9sse 3|qISueiu] 7°¢
[T - - SI'T €0 €81 - 0r's - 0r's (V) [E10L
11°0 - - 010 100 600 - 61°0 - 61°0 S3IMXY 79 aIyIum,y
1€°0 - - £v'0 800 Se0 - 990 - 99°0 sinduio)
60°0 - - 170 €00 61°0 - 870 - 870 juatndinbs 201130
LT - - %1 170 17l - L6’e - L6E Assuioen pue juelJ
sjasse 3jqidue] ¢

£202 vT0t
£z 1¢ PIZIE g o sy |(6221005520) | Tomdyiese | g yormpygese G200 RRD1 ady e s
WATITSY | WAENIESY | e susopy | UOPOTPPA AU PHEID Hosupieq Supuado | sdurpeq Suisoy | YO . soueleq Sutuadg s1gnonBg
MO0T1d LIN NOILVIDIIdId AD0T1d SSOUD

$T0T ‘1€ YOI PUe STOT ‘1€ YdIBIA 18 se ssai3oad ul syom [e3ide)) pue syosse 31qi3ueu] quswdinba pue jued

*Auadoud ou st 1ot “sajsuen ssauisng o) JUenSMJ

s1asse a1qi3ueyu] pue juswdimbs pue jued ‘Auadoad €

(parels ss1mIalio ssajun ‘uolj[iw s33dny Werpuy ut syuUNOWe |[v)

STOT ‘1€ Y211\ papua 1eak a3 o) SjudWd) )G JRIDUBUL] O) SIJON

pPaNWIY dyeALL] sadudtdsorg Synuadu]




570 - - - 570 - - N
- - - - - - B PTIEo10 — S3[qEAIR03Y pRIL pAIndsiq (1)
] AS11pasd
- - - - - - ° uf 95e210U1 JUBDGIUBIS SATY YOI — SIqRAIRONY PR paIndsiq (a)
- - - - - - - D003 palapISuco—53|qeAIdTy SpriL pAindsiq (A1)
- = = = = = = porredw; JIpaId — Sa|qeAla0ay 2peJ1 paindsipun (1it)
S pad ul
) } ) ) ) ) ) ose2131] UEILTUTIS SATY YOIyM — S2[qear2aay apel] pandstpun (11)
970 = " - 920 - - POO3 PoIapISUOD — S3|(EAIA09] SpRIL pandsipun (1)

124 SIBIY €7 saeaf z-1 Je3f | - syyuomwt 9 Sjuom anp jJoN
[El0L € UEBY} 3I0IY B 9 uey) $S97T SIE[NIIMEJ

yuamAed jo 3)ep anp 3y} wouj spotsad Suraio[jo) Joj SurpueisinQ
$Z07 ‘1€ YOJIBIA 1B SE J[NPIYDS SUIITE SI[(BAIDINY IpeI ]

70°0 - - - - 200 - 18301
- < - - - - - pazteduwl }1paId — S3[qRAIS03Y SpRl] pandsi( (1a)
Asupand
- - - - - N ) ul 9SBIIOUT JUROYIUSIS SABY YOTMm — SI[qRAISISY 2pel ] pandsiq (a)
- - - - - - - POO3 PaI3PISUOI—S3|qRAISI3Y pel] payndsiq (al)
= - - - - - - pairedull 31paid — S3[qeAIs3y dpes L payndsipun (1)
_ B B - - Jsujpand ur
- - asealout JuedyIud1s dAY OIYM — SI|QEAIIIIY apes ] paindsipun) (11)
700 = = - - 700 - PO03 PIIIPISUOD ~ S3[QEAI33] oped ] pawndsipun) (1)

S183A SIBIX €-7 s1edA Z-1 Jed4 | - syjuow 9 sHjuow anp joN
[el0L € Ueq) aJojy 9 ueq) §$37 SIB[nO1IB ]

juamAed jo 3)ep anp ay) wodj sporaad Suimojjoj 10§ SuipueIsinO
GZ0Z ‘1€ U2JB)\ JB SE 3[NPYDS 301336 SI[BAIIIIY Pl ]

97°0 70°0 1830],

pasteduwl 1P - SI[QRAISOA SPRIT,
- - NS I1PaId I 3se3Ioul JUedyrud1s daRY YIMYA SI[qRAISIA Ipel]
Po03 paIapIsuod “pamoasun

(s)99p [njiqnop pue peq 10§ 22uEMO[B) 3>0EMO|[E JuamIEdm]

Pattedw! J1pU2 - S3[qRAI0AT 3pRl]

YSU 31Pa1d Ut 3STIIOUL JUBSY IUFIS AR YOIYm SI{QRAISIAU JpRI].
9Z°0 200 PoO3 pasapisuos ‘pamossup)
POO3 paIspIsuos ‘parnaag
SqBAIL IpeIY

$TOT ‘1€ WIBW | STOT 1€ PIEW
JESY jESYy SIB[NdMIR Y

dqeAIY apEI] 1
S19SSE |BOURULY

(pare3s 3stauay1o ssoqun “uoriw ssadny UBIpU[ Ul sjunoure [[y)
ST0Z ‘1€ WIE PIpud 1835 2y) 10 sjudwdyEYg 1BRuEnL] 0} S9)0N
PAWIT AvaLI] sdUISOIg LinuaSuy



Ingenuity Biosciences Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees million. unless otherwisc stated)

4.2 Cash and cash cquivalents
As at As at
Particulars March 31,2025 | March 31,2024
Balances with banks
- in current accounts 0.93 0.25
Cash in hand 0.01 0.01
Total 0.94 0.26
4.3 Other financial asscts
. As at As at
Particulars March 31,2025 | March 31,2024
Unsecured, considered good
Current
Contract asset
- Due from customer (accrued revenue) (refer note 13.2) - -
Employee's benefit receivable (refer note 22) - 0.07
Total - 0.07
Reconciliation of contract asset:
Particulars As at Asat
March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024
Balance at the beginning of the year - 0.87
Less: Invoicing during the year from balance at the beginning of the ) (0.87)
year
Add: Contract assets created during the year - -
Balance at the end of the year - -
5 Income tax assets
Particulars Asat Asat
March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024
Non-current
Advance payment of Income tax 0.03 1.93
Total 0.03 1.93
6 Other assets
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024
Current
Unsecured considered good
Prepaid expenses R .
Balances with government authorities 0.01 0.30
Advance 1o creditors * *
Total 0.01 0.31

* Figure nullified in conversion of Rupees in million.
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Ingenuity Biosciences Private Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2025

(All amounts in Indian Rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

7 Equity share capital

Parliculars

As at March 31, 2025

As at March 31, 2024

Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
Authorised share capital
Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 35,00,000 35.00 35,00,000 35.00
Issucd, subscribed and fully paid up share capital
Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 7,00,000 7.00 7,00,000 7.00

(

B
~

Reconciliation of the equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year

As at March 31, 2025

Particulars
Number of shares Amount
Shares outstanding as at April 01, 2024 7,00,000 7.00
Issue of equity shares during the year - -
Shares outstanding as at March 31, 2025 7,00,000 7.00
. As at March 31, 2024
Particulars
Number of sharcs Amount
Shares outstanding as at April 01, 2023 7,00,000 7.00
Issue of equity shares during the year - -
Shares outstanding as at March 31, 2024 7,00,000 7.00

(b) Terms/Rights attached to equity shares

In respect of Ordinary shares, voting rights shall be in the saine proportion as the capital paid upon such ordinary share bears to the total paid up ordinary capital of the Company. The Dividend
proposed by the board of Directors, if any, is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation, the
shareholders of ordinary shares are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholdings.

(c¢) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

. As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Particulars n .
Number of shares % holding Number of shares % holding
Veeda Clinical Research Limited 7,00,000 100.00% 7,00,000 100.00%
(d) Equity Shareholding of Promoters as at March 31, 2025
. o .
Promoter Name Class of share No.. oi:shares atthe | Change during the | No. of shares at the % of Total shares ”e change during
beginning of the ycar year end of the year the year
Veeda Clinical Research Limited Equity shares ofRs. 10 7,00,000 ) 7,00,000 100.00 A
each fully paid
[ Total 7,00,000 - 7,00,000 100.00 -
i (e) Equity Shareholding of Promoters as at March 31, 2024
’ ; " ;
- Promoter Name Class of share No'. oltshares atthe | Change during the | No. of shares at the % of Total shares % change during
beginning of the year year end of the year the year
Veeda Clinical Research Limited Equity shares of Rs. 10 3,50,000 3,50,000 7,00,000 100.00 100.00
each fully paid
Somru Bioscience Inc. Equity shares ofl'lsA 10 3,50,000 (3.50,000) R . (100.00)
each fully paid
[ Total 7,00,000 - 7,00,000 100.00 -
8 Other Equity
. As at As at
Particulars March 31,2025 | March 31,2024
Surplus/(Deficit) in Statement of Profit and Loss
Balance at the beginning of the year (5.96) 4.27
Add/(Less): Changes due to prior period errors 0.02 -
Add/(Less): Profit / (Loss) for the year (net of taxes) (0.10) (10.23)
Add/ (Less): Other comprehensive income for the year )
(net of taxes)
Balance at the end of the year (6.03) (5.96)
[Total other equity (6.03) (5.96)

* Figure nullified in conversion of Rupees in million.

Surplus in statement of profit and loss: Surplus in statement of profit and loss are the profits / (losses) that the company has eamed / incurred till date, less any transfers to general reserve, dividends
or other distributions paid to shareholders. Retained earnings include re-measurement Joss / (gain) on defined benefit plans, net of taxes that will not be reclassified to the statement of profit and loss.
Retained eamings is a frec reserve available to the company and eligible for distribution to shareholders, in case where it is having positive balance representing net eamings till date.

Iy .




Inge

nuity Blosciences Private Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupecs million, unless otherwise stated)

9

9.1

Financial liabilities

Trade payables
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
- Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprise - -
0.03 | 0.02

- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises

0.03 0.02

lﬁal

Terms and conditions of the above outstanding balances:
Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled in 45-180 days.
For explanation on Company's credit risk management process, refer note 27.

For terms and conditions with related party, refer note 23.
’7 Trade Payables ageing schedule as at March 31, 2025
[ Outstanding for following periods from the date of transaction#
Particulars .
L Unbilled Less than I year 2-3 Years More than 3 Total
years
[G) Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises | - - - - -
(i) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 0.03 - - - 0.03 |
[Gii) Disputed dues of micro and small enterprises [ - - - . N
[(v) Disputed dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises | - - - - -
Total 0.03 - - - 0.03
L Trade Payables ageing schedule as at March 31, 2024
Outstanding for following periods from the date of transaction¥#
Particulars
r Unbilled Less than I year 2-3 Years More than 3 Total
Years
|) Total ding dues of micro and small enterprises [ - * - - -
[(ii) Total out ding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises | 0.02 - - - 0.02
I(u'i) Disputed dues of micro and small enterprises | - - - - .
[ﬁv) Disputed dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises - - - - -
Total 0.02 - - - 0.02
Other Current Liabilities
As at As at
March 31,2025 | Merch 31,2024 |

Particulars

Contract liabilities
Due to customer (excess billing over revenue) (refer note 13.2)

Statutory dues payable

Ilolal

As st

1 Ar g8

March 31, 2025

Mersh 362024

! Particulars

Reconciliation of contract liabilities:

Balance at the beginning of the year < 11.69
- (11.60)

Less: Revenue recognized during the year from balance at the beginning of the year

Add: Contract liabilities created during the year

Balance at the end of the year

Income tax liabilities (net)

As at { As at —’
Particulars March 31,2025 | March 31,2024
[Income tax liabilities (net) [ - | 1.76
[Total - 1.76

® Figure nullified in conversion of Rupees in million.
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Ingenuity Biosciences Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

12 Taxexpense

The major components of income tax expense for the year ended March 31, 2025 and year ended March 31, 2024 arc :

(A) Profit and loss section

Particulars

Year ended March
31,2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Current income tax

Current income tax charge - 1.75
Adjustment of tax relating to earlicr years - 0.41)
Deferred tax .
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differcnees - 1.11
Total - 2.45
(B) Other comprehensive income (OCI) seetion
Year ended March Year ended

Particulars

31, 2025

Mnrch 31,2024

Deferred tax related to items recognized in OCI during the year

Total

(C) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplicd by India's domestic tax rate for the

vear ended March 31, 2025 and year ended March 31, 2024 ¢

Particulars

Year cnded March

Year ended

31,2025 March 31,2024
Profit/(loss) before tax (0.10) (7.78)
Tax using the Company's domestic tax rate 25.168% 25.168%
Expected income tax expensc as per applicable taxes - -
Adjustments
Non-deductible expense - 3.71
Adjustment of tax relating to earlier years - (0.41)
Others - (0.85)
Tax expense as per statement of profit and loss - 2.45
(D) Balance sheet section
. As at As at
Particulars March 31,2025 | March 31,2024
Income tax assets 0.03 1.93
Income tax liabilities - (1.76)
(E) Deferred tax
Balance Sheet Statement of Profit and Loss OCI
Particulars As at As at Year ended | Year ended March|  Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024 | March 31,2025 31,2024 March 31,2025 | March 31,2024
Deferred Tax Asset/ (Liability) (Net)
Difference between depreciable assets as per books of accounts
and written down value for tax purpose . : N 0.01 - N
Employee benefits - - - 0.13 - -
Company incorporation and Share issue expense - - - 0.04 - -
Unused Income tax losses and Unabsorbed depreciation - - - 0.92 - -
Deferred tax expense / (credit) - 1.11 - -
Deferred Tax Assets / (Liabilities) (Net) - -
Reconciliation of deferred tax assets / (liabilifies) (net) Asat Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Opening balance as at the beginning of the year - L1
Tax income/(expense) during the year recognized in profit or loss - (L1
Tax income/(expense) during the year recognized in other - -
comprehensive income
Closing balance as at the end of the year - -

Note:

The company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and onlyifithasale

same tax authority,

gally enforceable right to set off deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities that relate to income taxes levied by the

&
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

13 Revenue from operations

Particulars Year ended March | Year ended March
31,2025 31,2024
Revenue from operations
Sale of services - 18.71
Total - 18.71

13.1 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Set out below is the disaggregation of the Company's revenue from contract with customer

A. Geographical location of customer

Particulars Yecar ended March| Year ended March
31,2025 31,2024

India - 12.17

Outside India - 6.54

Total revenue from coutract with customers - 18.71

B. Timing of revenue recognition

Particulars Year ended March| Year ended March
: 31,2025 31,2024

Services transferred over time - 18.71

Total revenue from contract with customers - 18.71

13.2 Contract Balances

The below table provides information about trade receivables, contract assets and contract liabilities from the contracts with customers:

Particulars

Year ended March
31, 2025

Year ended March
31,2024

Trade receivables (refer note 4.1)

Contract assets (refer note 4.3)

- Due from customer (accrued revenue)
Contract Liabilities (refer note 10)

- Due to customer (excess billing over revenue)

0.02

0.26

Contract assets relates to revenue earned from ongoing clinical services. As such, the balances of this account vary and depend on

the number of clinical services at the end of the year.

Trade receivables are recognized when the right to consideration becomes unconditional. These are non interest bearing generally on
the terms of 30 days. Company has receivable from its customers for the sale of services to its customers.
Contract liabilities include short-term advances received for providing clinical services and payment received from customer against
invoice raised for which clinical services are yet to be rendered. Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue when the Company

satisfies the performance obligation.

13.3 Reconciling the amount of revenuc recognized in the statement of profit and loss with the contracted price

Particulars Year ended March| Year ended March
31,2025 31,2024

Revenue as per contracted price - 18.71

Adjustments:

Credit notes issued due to change in performance obligation - -

Revenue from contracts with customers - 18.71

HMEABAD
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2025

(All amounts in Indian Rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

13.4 Information about Company's performance obligation are summarized below:

13.5

14

15

16

17

The performance obligation satisfied over a period oftime as and when services are rendered in accordance with the terms of
contract with customer and payment terms is generally due within 30 days from the date of invoice. The Company renders customer
specific services and accordingly Company is eligible to recover the payment from the customer till the date of service rendered by
the Company in case of termination received by the customer as per the terms of contract. Company does not provide any types of

warranties and related obligations to customers.

Information about major customers:
For information about major customers, refer note 25.

Other income

Particulars

Year ended March

Year ended March

31, 2025 31,2024
Liabilities no longer required written back (refer footnote below and note 23) - 26.52
Interest on IT Refund - 0.09
Others * 0.07
Professional Charges Reimbursement 0.03 -
Total 0.03 26.68

Note: During the year ended March 31, 2024, the company has written back the loan given by Veeda Clinical Research Limited
amounting Rs.16.00 million. Also, the company has written back credit balance of Somru Bioscience Inc. amounting to Rs. 5.19

million during the year.

Cost of materials Consumed
Particulars Year ended March | Year ended March
31,2025 31,2024
Opening stock of consumables - 7.58
Add: Purchases during the year - 6.06
Total - 13.64
Less : Transferred as per BTA (refer note 29) - (0.57)
Total - 13.07
Employee Benefit Expenses
Particulars Year ended March | Year ended March
31,2025 31,2024
Salaries, allowances and bonus - 7.59
Contributions to provident and other funds (refer note 22) * 0.17
Staff welfare expenses - 0.01
Total * 7.717

* Figure nullified in conversion of Rupees in million.

Finance costs

Year ended March

Year ended March

Particulars 31,2025 31,2024
Interest expense on

-Delayed payment to MSME creditors - 0.01
Bank charges and other borrowing cost 0.01 0.03
Total 0.01 0.04

> AHMEARAD\ !
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18 Clinical and analytical research expenses
Year ended March | Year ended March
Particulars 31,2025 31,2024
Bio analytical research expense - 0.15
Total - 0.15
19 Other Expenses
Ycar ended March | Year ended March
Particulars 31,2025 31,2024
Short term lease rental 0.01 0.30
Net loss on foreign currency transactions * 0.61
Repairs, renewals and mainteuance expenses
- Plant & Machineries - 0.05
- softwares - 1.62
Insurance expenses - 0.01
Travelling and Conveyance - 0.26
Legal and Professional Fees 0.08 1.06
Payments to auditors (refer note 19.1) 0.01 0.02
Rates & taxes * 0.89
Other administrative expenses - 0.01
Living Allowance (Forex) - 0.01
Technology Transfer & Advisory Services - 11.92
Loss on Sale of assets (refer note 29) - 14.29
Total 0.11 31.06
* Figure nullified in conversion of Rupees in million.
19.1 Payment to auditors
Particulars Year ended March| Year ended March
31,2025 31,2024
As auditor:
-Audit fees 0.01 0.02
Total 0.01 0.02
20 Earnings per share
Particulars Year ended March| Year ended March
31,2025 31,2024
Profit/(Loss) attributable to equity shareholders (0.10) (10.23)
Nominal value of equity share (Amount in Rs.) 10.00 10.00
Total number of equity shares : 7,00,000 7,00,000
Number of Weighted Average Equity Shares, outstanding during the year for basic and
diluted EPS 7,00,000 7,00,000
Earnings per equity share (Amount in Rs.)
Basic and Diluted Earnings per Share (0.14) (14.61)
21 Contingent liabilities & capital commitment not provided for
There is no Contingent liabilities or capital commitment as at March 31,2025 and March 31,2024,
.
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
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22 Disclosure for cmployee benefits

(a) Defined contribution plans

Amount recognized as expenscs and included in note 18 "Employec benefit expense™:

Particulars Year ended Yecar ended March 31,
March 31, 2025 2024
Contribution to Provident fund * 0.16
Contribution to Employee statc insurance - 0.01
Total * 0.17

(b) Defined benefits plan

The Company has following post employment benefit which is in the nature of defined benefit plan:

Gratuity

The Company provides for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, Employees who are in continuous
service for a period of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on rctirement/termination is the employees last
drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the numbcr of years of service calculated on

actuarial basis. The gratuity plan is unfunded.

i. Reconciliation of defined benefit obligation

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31,2024

Opening defined benefit obligation

Current Service Cost

Past Service Cost

Interest Cost

Transferred due to sale of business

Components of actuarial gain/(losses) on obligation
- Due to Change in financial assumptions
- Due to change in demographic assumption
- Due to experience adjustments

Benefits paid

Closing defined benefit obligation

0.16

ii. Net liability/(Asset) recognized in the Balance Sheet

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2025

Asat
March 31, 2024

Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligations
Fair Value of Plan assets
Net liability/(Asset) recognized in the Balance Sheet

iii. Expenscs recognized in statcment of Profit and Loss

Particulars

Year ended
March 31,2025

Year ended March 31,
2024

Current service cost

Past service cost

Net interest cost

Net Gratuity cost recognized in the statement of Profit and Loss

iv. Other Comprehensive Income

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended March 31,
2024

Actuarial gains / (losses)

- Due to change in demographic assumption

- Due to Change in financial assumptions

- Due to experience adjustments

Return on plan assets, excluding amount recognized in nel inferest expense

Components of defined bencfit costs recognized in other comprehensive income

* Figure nullified in conversion of Rupees in million,
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23 Related party disclosures

As per the Indian Accounting Standard on "Related Party Disclosures” (Ind AS 24), the related parties of the Company are as follows:

Name of related parties & description of relationship

Holding company

Veeda Clinical Research Limited (w.e.f.April 1, 2023, was onc of the Joint venturcr till March 31, 2023)

Joint Veﬁturer

Veeda Clinical Research Limited (Till March 31, 2023, become holding company w.c.£April 1, 2023)

Somru Bioscience Inc. (Till March 31, 2023)

Key managerial personnel of the Company

Mr. Ajay Tandon, Director (resigned w.e.f. April 14, 2025)
Mr. Nirmal Bhatia, Director

Mr. Mahesh Bhalgat, Director (w.e.f. April 14, 2025)

Mr. Mohammed Moinul Islam, Director (resigned w.e.f. August 18, 2023)
Ms. Clarinda De Guzman Islam, Director (resigned w.e.f. August 18, 2023)

. . . Year ended March|Year ended March
Nature of transactions with related parties 31,2025 31,2024
Holding company
Veeda Clinical Research Limited
= Reimbursement of expenses incurred 0.03 -
4 Reimbursement for employee stock options granted - 0.01
=1 Rent expense 0.01 0.30
Professional, Technical and Business Services availed - 0.91
'\ Purchase of property, plant and equipment - 7.00
. Loan received - 29.50
Repayment of loan received - 13.50
Loan written back (including interest accrued) - 16.00
Entity who was one of the Joint venturer till March 31, 2023
Somru Bioscience Inc,
Trade payable written back included in other income (refer note 16) - 5.19
Purchase of Material and Training & Technical advisory services - 16.53
Outstanding balances at the end of the year As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Veeda Clinical Research Limited
ESOP expenses receivable - 0.07
Trade receivable 0.02 -
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24 Details of ducs to micro and small enterpriscs as per MSMED Act, 2006

The Ministry of Micro, Small and Mcdium Enterprises has issued an office memorandum datcd August 26, 2008 which recommends tl:Iat Ithe;i
Micro and Small Enterprises should mention in their correspondenee wilh its customers the Entreprencurs Mcmorandun: Itlumber asEaDoza ;.
after filing of the Memorandum in accordance with the ‘Micro. Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006° (‘the MSM ct').

Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of the amounts payable to such Enterprises has been made in the Firmncial S'la(ements based on
information received and available with the Company. Further in view of the Management, the impact of intcrest, l'fany, l'hal may be payable
in accordance with the provisions of the Act is not expected fo be material. The Company has not received any claim for interest from any

Supplicr as at the Balance Sheet date.

The details as required by MSMED Act are piven below;

As at As at
Particulars March 31,2025 | March 31,2024
The principal amount and the interest duc thercon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end
of accounting year;

Principal and interest amount

Trade payable

Capital payable

The amount of interest paid by the buyer under the MSMED Act, 2006 nlong wilh the amounts of|
the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during cach accounting ycar; - 1.40

The amount of interest due and payable for the year (where the principal has been paid but
interest under the MSMED Act not paid);

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of accounting year; - 0.01
The amount of further interest due and payable even in the succeeding year, until such date when
the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of - -
disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23.

- 0.01

R L

On basis of information and records available with the Company, the above disclosures are made in respect of amount due to the micro and
small enterprises, which have been registered with the relevant competent authorities. This has been relied upon by the auditors.

25 Segment reporting

The Company is mainly engaged in the business of Clinical Research for various Pharmaceuticals Companies. The Company’s business falls
within a single business segment of ‘Clinical Research' and all the activities of the Company revolve around this main business. The Chief
Operating decision maker (CODM) monitors the operating results of the business as a whole for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment. Therefore, management views Company's business activity as a single segment and there are
no separate reportable segments in terms of the requirements of Ind AS 108 "Operating Segments" as notified under section 133 of the
companies Act 2013.

Geographical segment

For management purposes, the Company is organized into two major operating geographies India and outside India. Geographical segment
wise bifurcation of revenue from external customers is as below:

Revenue from external customers Year ended March| Year ended March
31,2025 31,2024

India - 12.17

Outside India - 6.54

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of non-current assets, which do not include deferred tax assets, income tax assets and
financial assets analysed by the geographical area in which the assets are located:

As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31,2024

Carrying amount of non-current operating assets

India
Outside India

Information about major customers:

The company has assessed that therc are 2 external customers from which the revenue from transactions is 10% or more of the company's
total revenue for th ing March 31, 2024.

D
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26 Financial instrument - fair value hierarchy
The significant accounting policies,

luding the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are reco

financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in note 2 to the financial Statements.

Fair values
A. Category-wise classification of financial instrument

The carrying value of financial instruments by categories as at March 31,2025 and March 31, 2024:

gnized, in respect of each class of financial asset,

' Asat As at

Particulars Notes March 31,2025 | March 31,2024
Financial assets:
At amortised cost

.26

Trade receivables 4.1 8(9)2 g;(,
Cash and cash equivalents 4.2 . 0.07
Other financial assets 4.3 - 0.59
Total financial assct 0.96 ..
Financia! liabilities:
At amortised cost
Trade payables 9.1 0.03 0.02
Other financial liabilities 10.2 - -
Total financial liabilitics 0.03 0.02

The management assessed that carrying values of financial asscts and financial liabilitics i.c., cash and cash equivalents, trade payablcs, trade receivables, current inv

and other fi ial assets and

liabilities as at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 are reasonable approximations of their fair values largely duc to the short-term maturities of these instruments.
The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

27 Financiz! risk management objectives and policies

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations. The Company’s principal
financial assets include trade and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations.
y's senior 8! oversees the management of these risks and ensures that financial risk activities are governed by
appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company’s policies and risk objectives.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The C.

(a) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will ] b of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises two types of risk: interest rate risk and currency
risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include borrowings, receivables, payables and deposits.
The sensitivity analysis in the following sections relate to the position as at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024. The scnsitivity analysis has been prepared on the basis that the amount of net debt and the
proportion of financial instruments in foreign currencies are all constant. The analysis excludes the impact of movements in market variables on the carrying values of gratuity and other post retirement

obligations and provisions.

The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks. This is based on the financial assets and financial liabilities held at March 31, 2025 and March 31,

2024.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign
exchange rates relates to the Company’s operating activities denominated in United States Dollar (USD).

(i) Foreign currency financial assets :

. As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Particulars In foreign Amount” In foreign Amount
currency currency
Trade receivables:
- US Dollars - - 3148.10 0.26

Foreign currency sensitivity

The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in USD rates, with all other variables held constant, The impact on the Company's profit before tax is due to changes in the fair

value of monetary assets and liabilitics,

Particulars

Profit or (loss)

Equity, net of tax

Strengthening Weakening

Strengthening Weakening

March 31, 2025
5% Movement
USD

March 31, 2024
5% Movement
UsD

0.01 0.01)

0.01 (0.01)
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(b) Credit risk . . . . .
Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not ineet its obligations under a financial instrument or customncr contract, leading to a financial loss. The company is cxpos_ed 'lo credit risk from its operating
activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activitics, including deposits with banks and financial institutions, forcign cxchange transactions and other financial instruments.

Trade Receivables . .
Trade Reccivables of the company are unsecured. Credit risk is managed through periodic monitoring of the creditworthiness of customers in the normal course of business. '!'hc allo.wancc.: for impairment of
Trade receivables is created to the cxtent and as and when required, based upon the expected collectability of accounts reccivables. The pany eval the cc ation of risk with respect to trade
receivables as low, as its Customers are group of repulc.

The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade receivable by geographic region arc as follows:

As at As at
Particulars March 31,2025 | March 31,2024
Domestic 0.02 0.26
Other regions . ‘
%I 0.02 0.26
Age of trade receivables

As at As at

Particulars March 31,2025 | March 31,2024
Not due . )
Less than 6 months 0.02 -
6 months - 1 year - 0.26
1-2 years . ° )
2-3 years ) .
More than 3 vears - -
Total 0.02 0.26

(c) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and future cash and collateral obligations without incurring unacceptable losses. The Company’s objective is to, at all times
maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and collateral requirements. The Company closely mnonitors its liquidity position and deploys a robust cash

g system. It maintains adequate
sources of financing through various short term and long term loans at an optimized cost.

The table below izes the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual wndiscounted payments:

Particulars On demand Less than I year | 1yearto5years | More than 5 years Total

As at March 31,2025
Trade payables -
Other financial liabilities
Total -
As at March 31, 2024
Trade payables

Other financial liabilities
Total 0.02

- 0.02 - - 0.02

- - 0.02

28 Capital management
The capital structure of the Company is based on management’s judgement of the appropriate balance of key elements in order to neet its strategic and day-to-day needs. We consider the amount of capital in
proportion to risk and manage the capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Company will take appropriate steps in order to maintain, or if necessary adjust, its capital
structure.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended March 31, 2025 and period ended March 31, 2024.

Particulars Asat Asat
March 31,2025 March 31,2024

Debt (Refer note i below) - -
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 0.94 0.26
Net debt (0.94) (026
Equity share capital 7.00 7.00
Other equity (6.03) (5.96)
Total equity 0.97 1.04
Net debt to equity ratio (Refer note i below) - -

Note:
i) Debt is defined as non-current borrowings and current borrowings (excluding financial guarantee contracts and contingent consideration),
ii) Since net debt to equity ratio as at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 is negative, it is nol considered for calculation.
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29 Transfer of business

Pursuant to business transfer agreement dated 1st September, 2023, the company has sold its business
to its holding company (w.e.f. April 1, 2023, was one of the joint venturer till March 31, 2023) Veeda
Clinical Research Limited with effect from 01st September, 2023, as going concern on slump sale
basis for total cash consideration of Rs. 7.00 million. The difference between book value of Net assets
sold and sale consideration is recongised in the statement of profit and loss during the year.

Following are the assets & liabilities sold by the Company on September 1, 2023 :

Particulars Amounts

Assets

Non-Current Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment 2.95
Capital work in Progress 10.83
_ 13.79
Current Assets

Inventories 0.57
Other current assets 7.35

7.93

Total Assets 21.71
Liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities

Provisions 0.42

Total Liabilties 0.42

Net Assets 21.29
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30 Ratio analysis and its elements

% change from
Particulars Numerator Dcnominator Asat March 31,( As at M;;d' 31, March 31g, 2024 to
2025 20 March 31,2023
Current ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities 29 0.50 3122%
Current  borrowings + Non-
Debt- Equity Ratio Current  Borrowings+  leasc|Shareholder's Equity Refer note i below
payments
Eaming for Debt Service = Net
Profit after taxes + Non-cash|Debt service = Interest & Leasc
Debt Service Coverage ratio operating Payments + Principal ) Refer note iii below
expenses + Interest + other Repayments
adjustments
Return on Equity ratio ]::c‘ferei:::ﬁ;ivi dz:’.iilr taxes = Average Shareholder’s Equity Refer note ii below

Inventory Turnover ratio Cost of material consumed Average Inventory - 3.45 -100%
Net credit sales = Gross credit

Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio Average Trade Receivable - 1.25 -100%
sales - sales return
Net credit purchases = Gross

Trade Payable Tumover Ratio credit purchases - purchase|Average Trade Payables - 0.42 -100%

returm

Average working capital =
. . = Total sales - sal
Net Capital Turnover Ratio Net sales otal sales - sales Current  assets

—  Curmrent - 2.49 -100%
retumn AT
liabilities
Net Profit ratio Net Profit after tax :f:":ales = Total sales - sales - (0.55) 100%
. . Capital Employed = Tangible
Return on Capital Employed ii':s‘“gs before interest and| o Wworth + Total Debt + (0.10) (7.49) 227%

Deferred Tax Liability

Note:

1) Since Debt- Equity Ratio as at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 is negative, it is not considered for calculation,

i1) Since Retumn on Equity ratio as at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 is negative, it is not considered for calculation.

iii) Since Debt Service coverage Ratio as at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 is negative, it is not considered for calculation.

Reasons for change more than 25% in above ratios

Particulars Reasons for % change from March 31, 2024 to March 31, 2025
Current ratio The significant increase in current ratio is on account of absence of current income tax liabilities and trade payables also increase
in cash & cash equivalents as at March 31, 2025.
Inventory Tumover ratio There is no inventory and COGS as at March 31, 2025.
Trade Receivable Tumover Ratio There is no sales and trade receivables as at March 31, 2025,
Trade Payable Tumover Ratio There is no purchase and trade payables as at March 31, 2025.
Net Capital Tumover Ratio There is no sales for the year ended March 31st, 2025.
Net Profit ratio There is no sales for the year ended March 31st, 2025.
Return on Capital Employed There is increase in retumn on capital employed on account of decrease in loss during the year.
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31

32

33

Government of India’s Coder for Social Security 2020 (the 'Code') received assent from the President in September 2020. However,
the date from when the Code will become applicable and rules have not yet been notified. The Company will assess the impact of the
Code and account for the same once the effective date and rules are notified.

Other Statutory information:
The Company during the reporting periods does not have requirement to file the quarterly return or statement of current assets.

The Company has not been declared o Wilful Defaulters by any bank or financial institution or consortium thereof in accordance with
the guidelines on wilful defaulters issued by the RBI.

There are no proceedings initinted or pending agninst the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereundecr.

The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the reporting periods.

The Company has neither advanced, loaned or invested funds nor received any fund to/from any person or entity for lending or
investing or providing guarantee to/on behalf of the ultimate beneficiary during the reporting periods.

There is no immovable property whose title deed is not held in the name of the Company.
There is no charge or satisfaction of charge which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause e (87) of section 2 of the Act read with the Companies
(Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017.

The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement in terms of sections 230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company does not have any transaction not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or not disclosed as
income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961,

The Company has not carried out any transactions with eompanies struck off under section 248 of Companies Act, 2013.

The company uses accounting software for maintzining its Books of accounts which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
facility and the same has been operated throughout the year for 211 the relevant transactions recorded in accounting software. Further,
there are no instances of audit trail feature being iempered with.

As per our attached report of even date

For Ketul R Shah and Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants ' P For Ingenuity Biosciences Private Limited
ICAI FRN: 160764W - AZantes .+ CIN:U74999GJ2021PTC120292 \y
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Ketul R. Shah 8- Malesh Bhalgat Nirmal Bhatia
Proprietor — Director Director

Membership No. 13163 DIN :07253670 DIN : 09068966

Date: June 26, 2025 Date: June 26, 2025 Date: June 26, 2025
Place: Ahmedabad, India Place: Ahmedabad, India Place: Ahmedabad, India
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